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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

AUGUST 26, 2019 

PERMITS IN NATIONAL REGISTER HISTORIC DISTRICTS 

NRD-2019-0043 

2519 HARTFORD ROAD 

OLD WEST AUSTIN NATIONAL REGISTER HISTORIC DISTRICT 

 

PROPOSAL 

Demolish a one-story house built ca. 1941.  

 

ARCHITECTURE 

1-story, side-gabled, rectangular-plan house; clad in stone veneer with multi-lite double-

hung and casement windows; features include a broad stone chimney and a small entry 

porch. 

 

RESEARCH 

Guy and Emma D. Burks constructed the house around 1941 and lived there until their 

deaths in 1987 and 1995. Guy Burks was born in 1900 in Itasca, Texas, where his father 

managed a cotton gin. He attended the University of Texas at Austin in the early 1920s. By 

1941, he was working as an engineer at the Lower Colorado River Authority (LCRA), where 

he remained until around 1959. At the LCRA, Burks headed the Distribution Department, 

supervising distribution lines from the design stage to operation, then as the assistant chief 

engineer. Beginning around 1959, he worked as the chief engineer at the Bluebonnet 

Electric Co-op in Giddings until his retirement around 1977. Guy Burks died in 1987 in 

Austin. 

 

Emma Davis Wiseman Burks was born in 1902 in Covington, Texas, to a farming family. 

She attended Texas Presbyterian College and Baylor University, where she received a 

Teacher’s Certificate. She taught in public schools before marrying Guy Burks in 1928 in 

Hill County. The couple had two children. Emma Burks was involved with a number of 

social and civic activities, including the Austin Federated Woman’s Club, the UT Alpha Phi 

Mother’s Club, the University Junior High Band Mothers’ club [sic], and the Auxiliary to 

the Texas Society of Professional Engineers. Emma Burks died in 1995 in Austin. 

 

STANDARDS FOR REVIEW 

The house is a contributing property in the Old West Austin Historic District. It does not 

appear to meet the standards for designation as a historic landmark. 

 

Designation Criteria—Historic Landmark 
1) The building is more than 50 years old, having been constructed ca. 1941. 
2) The building retains a high degree of integrity. 
3) Properties must meet two historic designation criteria for landmark designation (City of 

Austin Land Development Code (Section 25-2-352). The property does not appear to 

demonstrate significance according to any of the criteria. 
a. Architecture. The building is an intact example of the Minimal Traditional style, but 

does not appear to be architecturally significant. 
b. Historical association. Guy and Emma Burks lived in the house for at least fifty 

years, from the time the house was constructed until at least 1992. There do not 

appear to be significant historical associations. 
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c. Archaeology. The property was not evaluated for its potential to yield significant 

data concerning the human history or prehistory of the region. 
d. Community value. The property does not appear to possess a unique location, 

physical characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the character, 

image, or cultural identity of the community, Austin, or Texas as a whole. 
e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed landscape 

with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Encourage rehabilitation and adaptive re-use of the existing building, including 

consideration of a demolition delay, as the building is contributing to the historic district. 

Encourage relocation over demolition. If the Commission votes to release the demolition 

permit, then staff recommends completion of a City of Austin Documentation Package, 

consisting of photographs of all elevations, a dimensioned sketch plan, and a narrative 

history, for archiving at the Austin History Center. 

Due to the building’s location in a National Register historic district, the Commission must 

review and comment on the proposed plans for new construction prior to the release of the 

demolition permit. Plans were received after the notice of public hearing was mailed, so will 

be reviewed at the Commission’s September 23 meeting. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Photos 

 
Primary (west) façade of 2519 Hartford Road. Source: Google Street View (March 2019). 

 

 

Occupancy History 

City directory research, Austin History Center 
By Historic Preservation Office staff 
July 2019 

 

1941 Address not listed 

 

1944 Guy and Emma D. Burks + 2 children, owners 

 Engineer, U.S. Lower Colorado Rivera Authority 

 

1947 Guy and Emma Burks, owners 

 Engineer/distribution, Lower Colorado Rivera Authority 

 

1949 Guy and Emma D. Burks, owners 

 Distribution engineer, L.C.R.A. 

 

1952 Guy and Emma Burks, owners 

 Engineer 

 

1955 Guy and Emma D. Burks, owners 

 Head distribution engineer, L.C.R.A. 

 

1959 Guy and Emma D. Burks, owners 

 Assistant chief engineer, L.C.R.A. 
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1962 Guy and Emma D. Burks, owners 

 Assistant chief engineer, Co-op 

 

1965 Guy and Emma D. Burks, owners 

 Chief engineer, Bluebonnet Electric Co-op (Giddings) 

 

1968 Guy and Emma D. Burks, owners 

 Chief engineer, Bluebonnet Electric Co-op (Giddings) 

 

1973 Guy and Emma D. Burks, owners 

 Chief engineer, Bluebonnet Electric Co-op (Giddings) 

 

1977 Guy and Emma Burks, owners 

 Retired 

 

1981 Guy and Emma Burks, owners 

 Retired 

 

1986 Guy and Emma Burks, owners 

 Retired 

 

1992 Guy Burks, owner  

 Retired 

[Staff note: This appears to be a typographical error, as Guy Burks died in 1987. 
Emma Burks lived in the house until at least 1992, and likely until her death in 
1995] 

 

 

Background Research 

 
“Managers of the electric utilities,” The Austin American, 5/31/1942. 
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Obituary for Emma Burks, Austin American-Statesman, 11/25/1995. 
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Building Permits 

 
Sewer connection permit issued to Guy Burks, 7/3/1941. 
 

 
Building permit for rock veneer residence and detached garage issued to Guy Burks, 7/8/1941. 
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Water tap permit issued to Guy Burks, 9/22/1941. 
 

 
Water service permit issued to Guy Burks, 7/27/1983. 


